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In 1432, the union of the trading cities 
of Berlin and Cölln was dissolved by 
Elector Friedrich II. In 1470, the two 
medieval cities were declared the 
permanent residence of the Elector of 
Brandenburg. By the early sixteenth 
century, the two cities Berlin and 
Cölln collectively had a population of 
approximately 12,000 inhabitants.

FROM THE MOAT 
AND GRÜNER 

GRABEN TO THE 
CELLAR VAULT

FROM THE BASTION TO THE 
TRIANGULAR FRONT YARD

FROM THE BRIDGE COLONNADE 
TO THE BALCONY

1657: During the expansion of 
Berlin-Cölln into a fortress city, 
bastion three was constructed 
at the location of today’s Haus-
vogteiplatz.
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From 1733, the successive demolition 
of the fortress rampart created open 
spaces. A square surrounded by 
buildings emerged on the footprint of 
the former bastion. The Jägerhof was 
expanded.

Between 1780 and 1785, the 
domed towers that still define 
Gendarmenmarkt today were erected. 
The Hausvogtei and the royal bank were 
constructed adjacent to the Jägerhof, 
and the bridges over the Grüner Graben 
were fitted with colonnades.

The ditch, being public property, was 
sold to neighboring private property 
owners. The path of the filled-in Grüner 
Graben was inscribed in the land 
register.

1890: The square is redesigned 
and given a triangular lawn, se-
mi-circular benches and a foun-
tain. 

1891: The buildings of the old 
Hausvogtei are demolished and 
the land is used to expand the 
neighboring Reichsbank (1892-
1894) in Jägerstraße.

1742: A wooden pedestrian 
bridge was built over the ditch 
called the Grüner Graben, con-
necting Hausvogteiplatz with 
M*-Straße and Friedrichstadt.

1883–85: The Grüner Graben 
was finally drained, and parts of 
the old bridge vault were filled 
in. The reclaimed land was sold 
to local residents.

1929: The southern part of the 
Spittelkolonnaden was demo-
lished and stored as part of the 
widening of Leipziger Straße.

1944: The northern part of the 
Spittelkolonnaden was de-
stroyed and demolished during 
the Second World War.

1980: A replica of the southern 
part of the Spittelkolonnaden 
was constructed at a slightly 
different location.

1886: During the backfilling of 
the Grüner Graben, the Jäger-
brücke colonnades were demo-
lished.

1910: The Königskolonnaden 
were relocated to the east side 
of Heinrich-von-Kleist-Park 
due to economic pressures at 
their original location.

1776: The Spittelkolonnaden, 
designed by Carl von Gontard, 
was constructed.

1787: A stone bridge was built 
across the full width of today’s 
Anton-Wilhelm-Amo-Stra-
ße. To conceal the view of the 
foul-smelling Grüner Graben, 
the bridge was lined with the 
so-called M*-Kolonnaden, de-
signed by Carl Gotthard Lang-
hans. Behind the colonnades 
stood two-story stalls.

1782: The colonnades on the Jä-
gerbrücke, designed by Georg 
Christian Unger, were built.

1777–80: The so-called Königs-
kolonnaden, designed by Carl 
von Gontard, were constructed.

1873: A new arched bridge, de-
signed by Heinrich Strack, was 
constructed in its place.

1872: The existing bridge was 
demolished due to severe 
structural faults. 

1890: During the development 
of the Grüner Graben, the back-
filled bridge vault in the area of 
the cellar was removed. Howe-
ver, parts of the bridge vault 
under the sidewalk remained 
intact.

1888: A plan for connecting the 
property to the sewage system 
shows a restaurant that was ac-
cessible via the colonnades.

1827, 1828: Further plans were 
drawn up for the extension of 
the soap boiling plant in the 
courtyard of the building on 
Hausvogteiplatz.

1823: Plans commissioned by 
master soap boiler J.H. Sarre for 
the addition of a second story 
to the existing single-story resi-
dential building were drawn up. 
These plans indicated a con-
nection to the colonnades and 
a stable in the courtyard. In the 
following years, further plans 
for the construction of a soap 
boiling plant in the courtyard 
were developed.

1843: Tradesman Wiebcke, a 
lamp and paint manufacturer, 
is listed in the Berlin address di-
rectory for the first time as the 
presumed owner of the proper-
ties at Hausvogteiplatz 8–9 and 
M*-Straße 3–40.

1847: Plans for the constructi-
on of a new transverse building 
were drawn up. The completion 
of the front building, which had 
already been erected by that 
time, cannot be precisely da-
ted.

1884/85: Minor building work 
was carried out on the exis-
ting residential and commercial 
building. Design drawings sho-
wing the addition of a third sto-
ry to the building were crossed 
out in the plans.

1889: The property was sold, 
and the existing building was 
presumably demolished. By 
1890, the four-story Zum Haus-
voigt building was built accor-
ding to plans by Otto March. 
The government architect 
Schmülling was named as the 
client.

1953: A building for the Institu-
te for Solid-state Research was 
erected in two construction 
phases on the ruins of the for-
mer business building.

1953: The university building 
hosting the IfEE today was er-
ected on the ruins of the Zum 
Hausvoigt building and exten-
ded onto the adjacent plot. The 
original outer wall of the busi-
ness building would have run 
right through the foyer of to-
day’s university building. Today, 
the western outer wall of the 
university building remains the 
only non-orthogonal element of 
the structure. The Grüner Gra-
ben and bastion’s course can 
still be discerned from it today.

The new university building comprised 
the house numbers M*-Straße 39–41. 
It was accessed via a central foyer and 
staircase located directly behind the 
colonnades. The structure and remains 
of the business building were reshaped 
in relation to the colonnades and 
extended into an axially symmetrical 
complex. Its facade incorporated neo-
classical elements reflecting the GDR’s 
spirit of ‘national tradition’.

1994: The Institute for Euro-
pean Ethnology is founded and 
moves into the building at M*-
Straße 40–41. The tenants of 
house 39 included the Weiers-
trass Institute for Applied Ana-
lysis and Stochastics and the 
German Mathematical Society.

2024: The Amo-Salon opens on 
the re/arranged ground floor of 
the building. It is a publicly ac-
cessible space ‘that brings to-
gether artists, researchers and 
members of the civil society 
to reflect on the city’s colonial 
past, its impact in the present, 
and implications for the future’. 

1944: The business premises 
are largely destroyed during 
the Second World War.

1890: The design for the cons-
truction of the clothing manu-
facturing house Zum Hausvogt 
envisaged the integration of 
the colonnades as an entran-
ce zone for one of the building 
sections. 

1890: Like the earliest building 
on the drained Grüner Graben, 
the western outer wall of this 
newly erected clothing manu-
facturing house, Zum Haus-
voigt, traced the Grüner Gra-
ben and bastion’s course. 

1953: The design for the new 
Academy of Sciences for the 
Institute for Solid-State Re-
search, built on the ruins of the 
Zum Hausvogt manufacturing 
house, integrated the colonna-
des for the first time as an axi-
ally symmetrical main entrance 
in front of the former neo-clas-
sical building. Inside, the sym-
metrical order of the colonna-
des was taken up and extended.

1953: Over the course of the 
new university building’s cons-
truction work, the remains of 
the former bridge vault were 
discovered under the side-
walk and excavated. They were 
subsequently integrated into 
the design of the building as a 
basement room.

2024: As part of the ground 
floor re/arrangement project – 
carried out in collaboration bet-
ween the IfEE, the Amo Collec-
tive Berlin, the working groups 
Collective Acess and CafEE and 
the coopdisco+ design team – 
the former delivery gate was 
transformed into a new, bar-
rier-free, main entrance to the 
building hosting the Institute 
for European Ethnography.

1906: The subway station of U-
Bahn-Linie 2 under the Haus-
vogteiplatz square was given 
the same name as the square.

1999: The Planwerk Innenstadt 
was adopted as an urban de-
velopment program designed 
to ‘unify’ Berlin’s fragmented 
urban structure through rigid 
development guidelines.

Between 1943-45, the buildings 
surrounding the square were almost 
completely destroyed.

During the GDR era, many war-
damaged properties were used as 
parking lots and remained undeveloped.
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* Based on the following map: 
‘Berlin und Cölln am Ende des 
dreißigjährigen Krieges’, 1648

* Based on the following map: ‘Die 
kurfürstliche Residenzstadt Berlin 
beim Tode Friedrich Wilhelms des 
Großen im Jahre’, 1688

The fortress wall, with Leipziger 
Tor as an entrance to the city, 1690

* Based on the following map: 
‘Die Königliche Residenzstadt 
Berlin bei dem Regierungsantritt 
Friedrichs des Großen im Jahre’, 
1740

* Based on the plan from 1910 by 
Julius Straube 

* According to the Berlin-Mitte 
Schadenskarte, 1953

* Based on a city map from 1972

* Source: Roberta Burghardt, 
Von der IBA zum Townhouse, in: 
Disko 19, AdBK Nürnberg 2010, 
pp. 31–44

* Based on the following map: 
‘Die Königliche Residenzstadt 
Berlin bei dem Tode Friedrichs des 
Großen im Jahre’, 1786

* Based on the following map: 
‘Die Königliche Residenzstadt 
Berlin bei dem Regierungsantritt 
Friedrichs des Großen im Jahre’, 
1740

* Plan by Johann Bernhard 
Schultz from 1688. In addition 
to the fortress city of Berlin/
Cölln, the two city extensions 
Friedrichswerder (1662) and 
Dorotheenstadt (1674) are already 
shown.

At the site of the Jäger-Bastion, the 
star-shaped structure of the former 
fortifications ‘clashed’ with the 
orthogonal system of the Prussian 
Friedrichstadt.

Bastion three, also called Sparr-
Bollwerk or Jäger-Bastion, was located 
between Leipziger Tor in the south and 
Neues Tor in the north. An armory was 
built as part of the bastion.

Construction 
of the fortress began on 

the firmer ground of the Berlin side 
on the eastern side of the Spree. On the 

Cölln side, vast quantities of earth had to 
be piled up to drain the marshy meadows. 

The construction of bastion seven in particular, 
known as the Bollwerk im Morast (Bulwark in 

the Swamp), proved especially difficult, and 
the planned height of the fortress was never 

realised at this location.

At about 
the same time as the Berlin-Cölln 

fortress was being constructed, 
between 1683 and 1686, the slave 

fortress of Groß-Friedrichsburg was 
being built on the coast of what is now 

Ghana, on the orders of Friedrich Wilhelm 
von Brandenburg. From this site, more than 

twenty thousand men, women and children 
from West Africa were abducted and sold 
into slavery on American 
plantations.

A moat 
of up to fifty-five metres wide 

and up to four metres deep 
separated the inner and outer 

walls of the fortress.

Two main gates connected the 
fortress city to the growing urban 

expansions beyond the moat of 
Leipziger Tor in the south, built in 1683, 

and Neustädter Tor in the north, first 
documented in 1688. The Jäger-Bastion, 

or bastion three, however, initially had 
no connection across the moat to 

Friedrichstadt.

Although the ramparts were 
levelled by 1736, the moat remained 

intact for some time. By royal decree, 
the moat was narrowed on both sides by 

residents residing adjacent to the moat. 
Only a ditch remains. 

While 
it was 

common by the 
Prussian state 

to clear out-of-use fortress 
infrastructure, they showed little 

interest in filling what remained of the 
ditch. Instead, it was repurposed for draining 
adjacent properties. Over time, 
however, the discharge of sewage 
and wastewater from neighboring 

factories and tanneries led to a 
severe degradation of the 

water quality.

Between 1740 and 
1750, the area later known 
as Hausvogteiplatz 
was, at the time, called 

Quarree.

Sometime 
between 1750 to 

1789, the square was 
named Jerusalemsplatz 
after Jerusalemer Straße, 
which also began there.

Since 1789, the 
square has been known as 

Hausvogteiplatz, named after the 
Hausvogtei, a court institution 
that was relocated there by 

Friedrich II in 1750.

Between 1690 and 
1699, the so-called Jägerhof – the seat of the 
hunting office and accommodations for 
hunting staff, equipment, horses and 
dogs – was constructed.

The square’s design was 
adapted to integrate a 

U-Bahn entrance, causing 
the original central 
alignment of the fountain to 

shift slightly off-centre.

Between 1889 and 
1920, most of the 
buildings surrounding the 
square were replaced. 
Hausvogteiplatz 
becomes the centre 
of Berlin’s textile 
and clothing 

industry.

The 
implementation 

of the Planwerk Innenstadt 
was closely tied to processes 

of neoliberalisation and 
commercialisation. Numerous 

office buildings, townhouses 
and embassies were built on 

Hausvogteiplatz. The historic 
layout of the square served as the 

urban planning basis for the new 
development. 

The Moroccan embassy moved 
into the former Jägerhof building.

The urban 
transformation, 

intended to create 
the impression of historical 

continuity, promoted the stylized 
ideal of a ‘historic’ Gründerzeit-era city 

and deliberately disregarded post-war 
modern urban development. This narrative 

was supported by the social construction 
of an ‘urban citizenry’ that was 

encouraged to participate in the 
development of the city through 

the privatization of land and 
buildings.

Over time, 
new buildings were constructed, 

such as the adjacent institute building 
to the north and the former GDR patent 

office, which was only completed after 
reunification. Haus Stern, opposite the 

IfEE, housed the GDR press office, from 
which the freedom 

of travel for GDR 
citizens was 

announced in 
1989.

As 
the city’s 

sewer system 
expanded, the 

Grüner Graben lost its 
function. In anticipation of its 

imminent drainage, the Verein für 
die Geschichte Berlins organised a final 
boat trip down it in 1878. The Grüner Graben 

was thoroughly prepared for the occasion: the weirs 
were opened to 
let in fresh water, 
shallow areas were 
cleaned, and the 
dark, arched areas 
were illuminated 
with lamps. Thirty-
six people took 
part in the fifty-
minute boat 
trip, travelling 

on twelve 
barges.

According to 
the Berlin address 

directory, the Fritz Ziehe 
restaurant operated behind 

the colonnades from 1890 
to 1929.

There is 
currently no archive 

material of constructions before 
1823 in today’s Anton-Wilhelm-
Amo-Straße 40/41. The first 
building records were created 

with the establishment 
of the Prussian 

building administration 
in the eighteenth 

century.

From approximately 1843 to 1890, 
the building consisted of an element 
that followed the course of M*-Straße 
and extended into the square, a front 
building facing the square and a rear 
building in the courtyard.

Zum Hausvoigt was constructed as 
two separate structures. Instead of 
adding a rear building, the depth of the 
front building was increased. The sharp 
angle of the square was incorporated 
into the built plot and was straightened 
orthogonally.

* Source: Construction plans from 
the Landesarchiv Berlin

* Source: Construction plans from 
the Landesarchiv Berlin

* Source: Humboldt-University 
Berlin building file and plan 
archive 

* Amo-Salon, https://amo-
collective.org/Homepage-Salon

* Source: Construction plans from 
the Landesarchiv Berlin

The  manufacturing 
house was part of the textile 

and clothing industry that 
developed around Hausvogteiplatz, 

which was predominantly run by 
Jewish merchants and traders. The 

open floor plan of the building, the 
use of elevators and the electric 

lighting reflected the emerging 
typology of modern department 

stores and commercial 
buildings at the end of 

the nineteenth 
century.

In 1933, the National Socialist regime 
enacted laws and decrees aimed at forcing Jewish 

garment makers, fabric manufacturers, tailors 
and seamstresses out of the fashion industry. 

Owners were forced to sell their 
businesses under duress. Many of 

the Jews employees who were 
unable to emigrate in 
time were persecuted 
and eventually 
murdered in 
extermination 
camps.

FROM THE RESIDENTIAL BUILDING 
TO THE BUILT-IN RELICS OF THE 

MANUFACTURING HOUSE

The 
development 

of the medieval 
settlements of Berlin 
and Cölln on the two 

sides of the Spree river 
interacted closely with 

the landscape of the glacial 
valley. The two cities emerged 

at a point where the marshy 
lowlands could be more easily 

crossed. Their city centres 
were built on valley sand dunes 
and, at least initially, expanded 

along the firmer ground of the 
Teltow and Barnim plateaus. 

However, the growth of the cities 
was repeatedly disrupted and 
challenged by the marshy and 

unstable building ground.

Over 
time, the 

back side of the 
colonnades were 

repeatedly adapted and 
rebuilt. Doors were replaced, 

entrances enlarged, shop 
windows installed and gallery 

skylights bricked up.

During the GDR era, the 
building stood near the Berlin Wall in 

East Berlin

* Berlin state archives* Berlin state archives

* Berlin state archives

* Source: Landesarchiv Berlin

* Berlin state archives

* Source: Landesarchiv Berlin

* Source: Landesarchiv Berlin

* Berlin state archives

* Berlin state archives

With the 1685 Edict of 
Potsdam, Friedrich Wilhelm, 

Elector of Brandenburg, invited Protestant 
religious refugees to settle in his territories. 

Approximately twenty thousand French Huguenots 
responded and were deliberately settled within existing or 

newly established communities, such as Französisch 
Buchholz. The Thirty Years’ War had left Berlin-Cölln 

and Brandenburg-Prussia severely depopulated 
and economically weakened. The settlement 

of the Huguenots formed part of a broader 
political initiative aimed at attracting 

skilled craftsmen and farmers from 
Switzerland, the Netherlands, Austria 

and other regions to expand 
the economic power of 

Brandenburg-Prussia.

The oldest known ancestor of 
the Sarre family is Pierre Sar-
re (1655–1739), who settled in 
Französisch Buchholz at the 
end of the seventeenth centu-
ry, where he met and married 
Marie Susanne Philippin.

FROM THE HUGUENOT SOAP 
BOILERS TO THEIR VANISHED 

COURTYARD SITE 

1812: J.H. Sarre, the later owner 
of the house at Hausvogtei-
platz, was mentioned for the 
first time in the Berlin address 
directory as the owner of a soap 
factory at Stralauer Straße 16. 
Additional business premises 
at Kleiner Judenhof 1, Kloster-
straße 102, Schustergaße 8, 
and Niederwallstraße 26 were 
mentioned.

1823: A design drawing for the 
addition of a story to the exis-
ting building shows a connec-
ting corridor between the house 
and the colonnades.

1847: Another drawing, for the 
construction of a transverse 
building in the courtyard, sho-
wed a direct spatial connection 
between the shops behind the 
colonnades and the first-floor 
rooms of the building behind.

1814: A design drawing was 
made for the construction of 
a soap boiling plant and stairs 
down to the Grüner Graben in 
the courtyard of the Hausvog-
teiplatz property for J.H. Sarre.

1823: Plans were drawn up to 
add a second story to the exis-
ting single-story residential 
building.

1843: The house became the 
property of the factory owner 
and tradesman Wiebcke. Ac-
cording to the Berlin address 
directory, the Sarre family then 
moved to Moabit. 

1798: According to the Berlin 
address directory, the name 
Sarre appears for the first time 
in Berlin and is mentioned in of-
ficial listings with roles such as 
servant, cadet, Eleven (military 
pupils and prospective officers) 
and Erspectanten (military trai-
nees). 

1800: According to the Berlin 
address directory, Isaac David 
Sarre, the father of the soap 
boiler at Hausvogteiplatz, was 
already active nearby as a soap 
boiler. His premises were loca-
ted in Lange Gasse in Alt-Ber-
lin, Stralauer Straße in Stralauer 
Vorstadt, and Niederwallstraße 
in Friedrichswerder.

* Based on the following 
maps: ‘Übersichtskarte des 
Bebauungsplans der Umgebungen 
Berlins’, 1862 and ‘Die Canalisation 
von Berlin, Übersichtsplan der 
zwölf Radialsysteme’, 1884

* Source: Regenbogenfabrik, 
‘Freistadt Barackia vor 
dem Kottbusser Tor 1872’, 
Regenbogenfabrik Blog, July 5, 
2021, https://regenbogenfabrik40.
blog/2021/07/05/freistadt-
barackia-vor-dem-kottbusser-
tor-1872/.

Hobrecht’s plan defined a framework 
of arterial roads, blocks, and squares 
that aimed to transform the chaotic 
growth of the city into an orderly 
urban structure. Shortly thereafter, 
Hobrecht and the physician Rudolph 
Virchow developed a complementary 
plan for the overarching organisation 
of the city’s sewage system. The plan 
envisaged the decentralised collection 
of wastewater in so-called radial 
systems, which channel sewage to 
the lowest points of each sector of the 
radial system before it is pumped via 
pumping stations to sewage fields on 
Berlin’s outskirts.

Philippe Sarre, the son of 
Pierre Sarre and an ancestor 
of Jean Henri Sarre, works 

as a gardener at the court of 
Friedrich II in Potsdam.

Between 1870 and 
1872, in response to the intolerable conditions of 

the Berlin housing market – including rising rents, six-month 
contracts, the lack of tenant rights, and speculation – people 

driven to homelessness established self-built settlements in front of 
Frankfurter Tor, Landsberger Tor and Kottbusser Tor. Fearing uprisings 
and self-organisation, authorities cleared, destroyed and removed these 
settlements by 1872 amidst great protest.  

‘The crowd smashed gas lanterns everywhere, dug up the gutter planks 
and built barricades out of them ... The police were met with fierce 
resistance; stones, bottles and the like were 
thrown at them from many houses ... 

The street lamps were shattered, 
burners were broken off and the 
escaping gas ignited, causing 
mighty flames to flare up, 
giving notice of the violence 
that had been perpetrated 

far and wide.’

In the Berlin address 
directory of 1818, a member of the 

Sarre family is listed for the first time as a soap 
boiler at Hausvogteiplatz. 

The soap boiler J.H. 
Sarre first procures the house 

at Hausvogteiplatz 9, then 8 and 9, 
and later also the houses at M*-

Straße 39–40.

Berlin’s 
textile industry 

– like many other 
German industries – was based 

on outsourcing work to seamstresses 
working from home. These women, who 
were paid by the piece, worked around 
eleven to fifteen hours a day. By the 
mid-1920s, around eighty thousand 

to a hundred thousand home 
seamstresses worked in the city’s 

textile industry.

1862: The development plan for 
Berlin’s surrounding areas, draf-
ted by the urban planner James 
Hobrecht, came into force.

1657–83: Berlin and Cölln 
was transformed into a single 
fortress city with ramparts, 
moats, and thirteen bastions.

FROM THE BASTION TO THE 
SLOPING OUTER WALL

1733–36: All ramparts up to 
eight metres in height were de-
molished. 

* Based on the following map: ‘Die 
kurfürstliche Residenzstadt Berlin 
beim Tode Friedrich Wilhelms des 
Großen im Jahre’, 1688

In the wake of the Thirty 
Years’ War, during which a 
large part of Berlin-Cölln was 

destroyed and the population 
halved, Elector Friedrich Wilhelm 

decided to protect the city by 
building a fortress and stationing 

troops there. 

The plans for the 
construction of the fortress, 
based on Dutch models, 
were drawn up by the engineer 
Johann Gregor Memhardt. In 1650, 
Memhardt developed the oldest 
surviving Berlin-Cölln city plan, 
which forms the basis for the 
construction of the fortress. 

As per an edict 
issued by Friedrich Wilhelm, 

Berlin and Cölln was to provide the 
necessary land, construction costs and 
manpower for the construction work. 
Every day, around a quarter of the area’s 

residents, soldiers from the garrison 
and farmers from the surrounding 

villages were forced to carry out 
so-called Schanzarbeit (fortification 

construction works) on the fortress. 
On average, around seven hundred to 
a thousand workers are said to have 
been involved in the construction of 
the fortress over a period of twenty-five 

years. The citizens of the town also 
provided accommodation and 

supplies for the soldiers, with 
around one to two soldiers 

accommodated per 
house.

While the 
fortress was being 
built, new settlements 
began to emerge 
outside the city, 
leading to increased 
traffic that made the 
fortifications more of 
a hindrance than a 
defense. At the same 
time, technological 
advancements in guns 
and artillery with 
ever greater range 
rendered the fortress 
increasingly 
obsolete from 
a military 
standpoint.

Although the fortress 
walls stood for only a few 
decades, they continue to 

shape and influence the city’s 
appearance today. The layout 

of the fortress had a lasting 
impact on the development 
of the surrounding suburbs 
and ultimately cemented 
Berlin-Cölln’s future role 

as a residential city with an 
unusually high concentration 

of court officials, state 
administrator, soldiers 

and officers.

The Berlin-Cölln fortress consists of 
thirteen bastions, an inner and outer 
rampart, and a moat whose water level 
can be regulated via weirs at points 
of contact with the Spree river. The 
ramparts consist of excavated material 
from the moat, some of which are 
reinforced with brick walls.

After 
the fortifications 

were dismantled, the 
remaining canal-like 

ditch – henceforth 
known as the Grüner 
Graben – continued 
to trace the outline 
of the former 
bastion.

While 
the Grüner Graben 

gradually silted up and was eventually drained 
between 1883 and 1885, its shape became 
embedded in the property boundaries that had in the 

meantime developed around it. To this day, the land 
still registers traces of the former ditch and 

bastion’s course.

FROM A WOODEN BRIDGE TO 
ANTON-WILHELM-AMO-STRASSE

1688: What would later become 
M*-Straße developed as part of 
newly laid-out Friedrichstadt 
extension.

2004: The Africa Council (Ber-
lin and Brandenburg), along 
with twenty member organi-
sations, called for the street to 
be renamed in honour of a pro-
minent African figure. Over the 
years, more organisations came 
to support this demand.

2023: On 6 July, the Oberver-
waltungsgericht (Higher Admi-
nistrative Court) formalised the 
renaming of M*-Straße to An-
ton-Wilhelm-Amo-Straße.

2020: The Bezirksverordneten-
versammlung Mitte (District 
Assembly of Berlin-Mitte) de-
cided to rename M*-Straße to 
Anton-Wilhelm-Amo-Straße.

1710: M*-Straße was first docu-
mented on a city map of Berlin, 
the royal capital.

1742: M*-Straße was connected 
to what is now Hausvogteiplatz 
through the construction of a 
footbridge.

1908: A subway station named 
after M*-Straße was inaugura-
ted.

1950: Following the Second 
World War, both the former 
Wilhelmplatz and the area’s 
U-Bahn station were renamed 
Thälmannplatz.1993: The name Otto-Grote-

wohl-Straße was reverted to its 
former name, Wilhelmstraße, 
while the U-Bahn station, too, 
was changed back to M*-Stra-
ße.

1986: The square and the U-
Bahn station were renamed 
again, this time to Otto-Grote-
wohl-Straße, in honour of the 
former GDR prime minister.

1707: The street formerly cal-
led the ninth street was offici-
ally named M*-Straße. Various 
theories exist regarding the ori-
gins and history of the name. 
According to research by his-
torian Christian Kopp (2015) 
in collaboration with the Berlin 
Postkolonial e.V. initiative, the 
name referred to Black servants 
of the Prussian court who had 
been forcibly brought to Brand-
enburg-Prussia.

M*-Straße 
initially 

terminated 
at the former 

Wilhelmsmarkt 
(now Wilhelmsplatz). 

During the 
later phase of 

Friedrichstadt’s 
extension, the street 
was extended to the 

Akzisemauer, the city’s 
customs wall.

Presently, the 
implementation 
of the decision 
of the Higher 
Administrative 
Court continues 
to be delayed 
due to the 
complaints 
of a local 
resident. 

Since 2014, the Umbenennungsfest 
(Renaming Festival) has been held annually 

on 23 August to mark the International Day for the 
Remembrance of the Slave Trade and its Abolition. 

Initiated by the Aktionsgruppe M-Straße, the event 
has been organised by the decolonize-mitte 

alliance since 2015.

During 
this period, the Sarotti 
chocolate factory opened 
a store on M*-Straße. The 
company’s visual language 

was characterised by racist 
and exoticising motifs. The 

logo, in use from 1918 until 
2004, reflected the post-First 

World War era’s colonial 
revisionist aspirations. 

* Source: Institut für 
Europäische Ethnologie

Between 
1884 and 

1885, the 
Berliner Afrika-

Konferenz, during 
which European 

colonial powers 
formalised the seizure 

and exploitation of African 
colonial territories, was held in 

close proximity to M*-Straße.

* Source: Institut für Europäische 
Ethnologie
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After the war, the 
properties were expropriated 

and become property of the 
GDR state. An application by the 
Handelszentrale Chemie for the transfer of 

legal ownership for the administration 
and use of the properties was 

granted in 
1950.
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The image descriptions appear 
in connection with a drawing 
that records an associated 
spatio-temporal phase in plan 
form. 

Their texts explain essential 
spatio-temporal features, 
while the footnotes refer to the 
source of the plan on which 
each respective drawing is 
based. 

The layout of the map is based 
on circles contextualizing 
specific spatio-temporal 
moments that can be dated 
by year. For example, when 
they densify around a certain 
period, the circles reference 
moments that express 
larger urban developments. 
The chronology runs from 
outer circles towards the 
centre, with the inner most 
circle representing the year 
2024, the date the map was 
produced. The further we 
move outwards, the deeper we 
delve into past histories, all of 
which have different spatio-
temporal characteristics that 
are traced as trajectories.

At the centre of this mapping 
is the building’s current state, 
from which the trajectories 
of different stories unfold. 
The circular layout of the map 
is divided in sections, each 
relating to a different scale 
level: there is the scale level 
of the earth and continents 
in the upper section, the 
city and its infrastructure on 
the right, street and square 
in the lower section and 
the architectural scale level 
in the left-hand sections. 
This allows to develop the 
trajectories through temporal 
and spatial continuities and 
discontinuities, thereby 
revealing relations between 
different events and built 
structures.

The trajectory of this story 
focusses on one scale level in 
spatio-temporal continuity. 

The trajectory of this story 
follows a continuous, even, 
space-time development, 
without significant leaps and 
disruptions. Its trajectory runs 
through different scales, from 
a relatively large to a relatively 
small.

The trajectories of these 
stories hardly show any 
changes in scale, but spatio-
temporal leaps caused by 
disruptive events.

The trajectory of these stories 
describe spatio-temporally 
limited phenomena that 
emerge and endure without 
spatio-temporal leaps.

NAVIGATION 
THROUGH 
TIME-SPACE

FROM THE BASTION TO THE SLOPING OUTER WALL

Where the moat of Berlin-Cölln’s fortress once ran, alongside the 
Jäger-Bastion, one of the fortress’s thirteen historical bastions, 
a building today hosting the Institut für Europäische Ethnologie 
(IfEE) at Anton-Wilhelm-Amo-Straße 40/41 now stands. In its time, 
the fortress offered little real protection to the city because it was 
already outdated as it was being constructed. To this day, we still 
find traces of the moat and bastion’s jagged layout: a diagonal wall 
at the western end of the building, which was located at the end 
of the street, reflects this historical geometry. This wall stands on 
the only non-rectangular property on the perimeter block between 
Anton-Wilhelm-Amo-Straße and Taubenstraße, both part of the 
city’s baroque Friedrichstadt district extension. The property’s 
boundary, along with the sloping wall of the institute’s study room 
and seminar halls above it, run diagonal to the street, reminiscent 
of two overlapping systems of order: Berlin-Cölln’s polygonal 
fortress city to the IfEE’s east and Friedrichstadt’s grid-like layout 
to the west.

FROM THE MOAT AND GRÜNER GRABEN TO THE CELLAR 
VAULT

The western fortress moat, which runs between the Jäger-
Bastion’s jagged remains and the city’s baroque expansion of the 
Friedrichstadt grid, was reduced to a now buried canal-like ditch 
called the Grüner Graben. As an artificial branch of the Spree river, 
the moat separated Friedrichstadt from the medieval city located 
within the fortress. Today, the Grüner Graben runs diagonally 
beneath the IfEE’s foyer, as evidenced by the remains of the vault 
in the basement below the classicist colonnades that line the 
building entrance. In 2023, the foyer was reopened as the Amo 
Salon, which, since 2024, is accessible through a new barrier-free 
entrance hall, formerly the delivery gate.

FROM THE HUGUENOT SOAP BOILERS TO THEIR VANISHED 
COURTYARD SITE  

A soap boiler family from Metz, early residents of the city’s newly 
built Friedrichstadt district expansion, once settled at the location 
of today’s IfEE courtyard. They erected an L-shaped two-story 
building oriented along the Grüner Graben, with a soap boiler 
workshop and stairs running down to the Grüner Graben. As 
displaced French Huguenots, they were welcomed to the sandy 
and economically- and resource-poor region of Brandenburg as 
skilled migrants and new settlers, brought in to populate the new 
and sparsely developed Friedrichstadt. There are no physical 
traces of the family’s lives to be found in the IfEE’s courtyard 
today, but must have settled in the area where the tree today gives 
shade to the bike parking area.

FROM A WOODEN BRIDGE TO ANTON-WILHELM-AMO-
STRASSE

The street called Anton-Wilhelm-Amo-Straße today historically 
served as one of the main connection roads between 
Friedrichswerder, a district of the medieval double city Berlin-
Cölln, and the newly developed city extension Friedrichstadt. 
The street originally crossed the Grüner Graben using a wooden 
bridge. The crossing was later upgraded to a stone bridge with 
two adjacent monumental classicist colonnades with small shops 
and restaurants behind them. M*-Straße, the street’s former name 
(here and throughout, the full name is redacted due to colonial and 
racist associations), was recently renamed Anton-Wilhelm-Amo-
Straße in reference to Anton Wilhelm Amo, a philosopher of African 
descent who taught in Wittenberg, Halle, and Jena. The renaming 
is a long-awaited event for many engaged in the decolonisation of 
symbols in public space, such as place names and statues. Soon, 
the street sign with its new name will be positioned at the corner of 
the IfEE building where the street joints Hausvogteiplatz.

FROM THE BRIDGE COLONNADE TO THE BALCONY

After the Grüner Graben was built over, the classicist colonnades 
that ran alongside the bridge were preserved and today mark 
the facades of the IfEE on the north side of the street and of 
the Ministry of Justice on the south side. While the other five 
colonnades that were installed along bridges crossing the Berlin-
Cölln fortress moat were destroyed a century later or moved to 
other locations, the colonnades on Anton-Wilhelm-Amo-Straße 
are the only ones that remained at their original location. Over 
time, two larger buildings were erected behind the colonnades on 
the northern side of the street and replaced the little shops and 
restaurants. After the Second World War, the northern colonnades 
were integrated into the main entrance facade of the newly 
constructed institute building for solid-state research belonging 
to the renamed Humboldt University. Today, through a re-
arrangement project initiated by the Amo Collective Berlin, along 
with the IfEE, and the working groups CafEE and Collective Acess, 
the small outdoor space between the colonnades and the former 
foyer can be used by the IfEE as a balcony facing the street.

FROM A RESIDENTIAL BUILDING TO THE RELICS OF A 
MANUFACTURING HOUSE

Today’s building at Anton-Wilhelm-Amo-Straße 40/41 was 
designed and built after the Second World War as an additional 
location for Humboldt University. The neo-classical building was 
the first construction on the site that had a central entrance 
placed right behind the middle of the monumental colonnades. 
It replaced two older buildings, which were both located behind 
the colonnades. One of the older buildings was a clothing 
manufacturing house with a modern floorplan and neo-baroque 
facades, developed by a Jewish firm. Both these older buildings 
were heavily damaged in the Second World War, with only the 
colonnades intact. Despite the stark differences in geometry 
between the damaged business building’s large, open spaces 
and the new building’s strictly symmetrical layout of smaller 
spaces for teaching and research activities, significant parts of 
the old building were integrated into the new one. The IfEE was 
thus designed according to and built on the ruined remains of the 
business building, which, in turn, was built after the demolition of a 
previously existing residential building.

FROM THE BASTION TO THE TRIANGULAR FRONT YARD

The fortress’s Jäger-Bastion, which gave shape to the moat and 
Grüner Graben, was later developed as a bourgeois square bridging 
the old Friedrichswerder neighbourhood, with its irregular street 
layout, and the new Friedrichstadt district, with its rectangular 
street layout. The square was named Hausvogteiplatz and is, still 
visible today, characterised by the triangular shape of the bastion. 
After the Second World War, the western edge of the square was 
reshaped, shifting from its alignment with the diagonal side of the 
former bastion towards the rectangular layout of Friedrichstadt. 
This created a triangular area on the square that gives the 
impression of being public property but is in fact a part of the 
Humboldt University, along with the other buildings at the corners 
of Anton-Wilhem-Amo-Straße and Taubenstraße. 

This time-deep mapping 
project presents seven possible 
trajectories, whose stories each 
articulate  the production of space  
within and around Anton-Wilhelm-
Amo-Straße 40/41. Starting from 
the current state of the building 
that today hosts the IfEE, the 
mapping unfolds only some of the 
multiple spatio-temporal narratives 
that speak of the building’s 
complex historical evolution and 
interaction with the immediate 
urban surroundings and events as 
well as its embeddedness within 
Berlin’s urban development. The 
ground floor of the IfEE and its 
adjacent built and unbuilt spaces 
thus emerge as a living archive 
of numerous influences that are 
inscribed in the very material of the 
property’s buildings, soil, voids and 
in-between areas. 

Looking more closely, the 
inscriptions become traceable. 
Understood as spatio-temporal 
contexts, they help to capture 
some of the political, social 
and economic conditions that 
have led to the spatialisation of 
governmental decisions; processes 
of appropriation; changes in use 
and ownership; acts of resistance; 
destruction; transformation; and 
many other events.

At the centre of the mapping lies 
the current state of the building, 
conceived as an arrangement of 
interwoven architectural fragments, 
each shaped by different historical 
periods and socio-political contexts. 
From this point, trajectories unfold, 
reaching back in time and to distant 
places. The further they extend 
from the present, the deeper they 
dive into the layered histories that 
operate at varying scales. 

These trajectories refer in parts 
to dominant historical narratives 
but most of all aim to uncover less 
visible, overwritten or forgotten 
processes that continue to shape 
the production of space at today’s 
Anton-Wilhelm-Amo-Straße 40/41.

SPATIO-
TEMPORAL 
TRAJECTORIES

A TIME-DEEP 
MAPPING 
OF ANTON-
WILHELM-
AMO-STRASSE 
40/41

At the site of the Jäger-Bastion, (...)

Philippe Sarre, the son 
of Pierre Sarre and an 

ancestor of (...)


